
CITY OF ESCONDIDO 

Historic Preservation Commission and Staff Seating 

The Planning Division is the coordinating division for the Historic Preservation Commission. 
For information call (760) 839-4671. 

CAROL REA 
Chair 

CAROL BREITENFELD 
Commissioner 

ERROL COWAN 
Commissioner 

JAMES SPANN 
Vice-Chair 

MARC CORRELL 
Commissioner 

JESSE HANWIT 
Commissioner 

EVA HETER 
Assistant City Clerk 

NICOLE PURVIS 
Commissioner 

 
 

  

AGENDA 
 

HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION 
201 N. Broadway 

City Hall Council Chambers 
 

3:00 P.M. 
JULY 19, 2018 

A. CALL TO ORDER 

B. FLAG SALUTE 

C. ROLL CALL 

D. REVIEW OF MINUTES: May 17, 2018 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

The Brown Act provides an opportunity for members of the public to directly address the Commission on any item of interest to the 
public, before or during the Commission's consideration of the item. If you wish to speak regarding an agenda item, please fill out a 
speaker's slip and give it to the minutes clerk who will forward it to the Chairman. 

Electronic Media: Electronic media which members of the public wish to be used during any public comment period should be 
submitted to the Planning Division at least 24 hours prior to the meeting at which it is to be shown. 

The electronic media will be subject to a virus scan and must be compatible with the City’s existing system. The media must be labeled 
with the name of the speaker, the comment period during which the media is to be played and contact information for the person 
presenting the media. 

The time necessary to present any electronic media is considered part of the maximum time limit provided to speakers. City staff will 
queue the electronic information when the public member is called upon to speak. Materials shown to the Commission during the 
meeting are part of the public record and may be retained by the City. 

The City of Escondido is not responsible for the content of any material presented, and the presentation and content of electronic 
media shall be subject to the same responsibilities regarding decorum and presentation as are applicable to live presentations. 

If you wish to speak concerning an item not on the agenda, you may do so under "Oral Communications" which is listed at the 
beginning and end of the agenda. All persons addressing the Historic Preservation Commission are asked to state their names for 
the public record. 

Availability of supplemental materials after agenda posting: Any supplemental writings or documents provided to the Historic 
Preservation Commission regarding any item on this agenda will be made available for public inspection in the Planning Division 
located at 201 N. Broadway during normal business hours, or in the Council Chambers while the meeting is in session. 

The City of Escondido recognizes its obligation to provide equal access to public services to individuals with disabilities. Please contact 
the A.D.A. Coordinator, (760) 839-4643, with any requests for reasonable accommodation, at least 24 hours prior to the meeting. 
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

 



Historic Preservation Commission 
                                                                                                                       July 19, 2018 

Page 2  
 

 

E. WRITTEN COMMUNICATION: 

"Under State law, all items under Written Communications can have no action and will be referred 
to the staff for administrative action or scheduled on a subsequent agenda." 
 

F. ORAL COMMUNICATION: 
"Under State law, all items under Oral Communications can have no action and will be referred to 
the staff for administrative action or scheduled on a subsequent agenda." This is the opportunity 
for members of the public to address the Commission on any item of business within the jurisdiction 
of the Commission. 
 

G. PUBLIC HEARINGS: None 

 

H. CURRENT BUSINESS: 

1. CONTINUED DESIGN REVIEW – CASE NO. PHG18-0013 

REQUEST:  Proposed renovations and new construction at the Historic Ritz Theater building 

and adjacent property 

ZONING/LOCATION: Downtown Specific Plan - Historic Downtown District / 301-309 East 

Grand Avenue 

APPLICANT: Tim Cruz, Plain Joe Studios   

STAFF: Jay Paul, Senior Planner 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Provide direction to applicant 

 

2. FUTURE MINUTES FORMAT 

 REQUEST: Receive information regarding format changes for future HPC minutes 

STAFF:  Adam Finestone, Principal Planner 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: None 

 

3. REPORT ON MARCH 23, 2018 OFFICE OF HISTORIC PRESERVATION SEMINAR 

  REQUEST: Presentation on Historic Preservation seminar 

  STAFF: Paul Bingham, Assistant Planner II 

  STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Receive presentation and discuss seminar 

 

Note: Current Business items are those that under state law and local ordinances do not require 
either public notice or public hearings. Public comments may be limited to a maximum time of three 
minutes per person. 

 

I. ORAL COMMUNICATION:  
"Under State law, all items under Oral Communication can have no action, and will be referred to 
the staff for administrative action or scheduled on a subsequent agenda."  This is the opportunity 
for members of the public to address the commission on any item of business within the 
jurisdiction of the Commission. 

 

J. COMMISSIONER COMMENTS 
 

K. ADJOURNMENT TO NEXT REGULARLY SCHEDULED HPC MEETING SEPTEMBER 20, 2018 
  



  Agenda Item No.: D 

Page 1 of 10 

 

 

CITY OF ESCONDIDO 
 

MINUTES OF REGULAR MEETING OF THE 
ESCONDIDO HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION 

 

MAY 17, 2018 
 

The regular meeting of the Historic Preservation Commission was called to order 
at 3:00 by Chair Rea in Council Chambers, 201 North Broadway, Escondido, 
California. 
 
Commissioners present: Chair Rea, Vice-chair Spann, Commissioner 
Breitenfeld, Commissioner Correll, Commissioner Cowan, Commissioner Hanwit, 
Commissioner Purvis. 
 
Commissioners absent: None. 
 
Staff present: Paul Bingham, Assistant Planner II; Adam Finestone, Principal 
Planner; Jay Paul, Senior Planner; and Eva Heter, Assistant City Clerk. 
 
SWEARING IN OF NEW COMMSSIONERS:  
 
Assistant City Clerk Heter administered the oath to Marc Correll, Errol Cowan, 
Nicole Purvis, and James Spann. 
 
SELECTION OF CHAIR, VICE-CHAIR AND DETERMINATION OF SEATING 
ORDER 
 
ACTION: 
 
Moved by Commissioner Correll, seconded by Commissioner Spann, to 
nominate Commissioner Rea to Chairman.  Motion carried unanimously.  
 
ACTION: 
 
Moved by Commissioner Correll, seconded by Commissioner Hanwit, to 
nominate Commission Spann to Vice-chairman.  Motion carried unanimously.  
 
 
 
 



 

 

Page 2 of 10 
 

MINUTES: 
 
Moved by Vice-chair Spann, seconded by Commission Correll, to approve the 
minutes of the March 8, 2018 meeting.  Motion carried unanimously.  
 
WRITTEN COMMUNICATION: 
 
Adam Finestone, Principal Planner, provided packets of plans for Items J.2 and 
J.3, and the Advisory Body Handbook, updated March 2018. 
 
ORAL COMMUNICATION: None 

 
PUBLIC HEARINGS: None 

 
CURRENT BUSINESS: 

 
J.1 DESIGN REVIEW – Case No. PHG18-0011 
 
REQUEST:  Proposed Remodel of the Historic Ritz Theater Building 
ZONING/LOCATION: Historic Downtown District/ 301-309 East Grand Avenue 

APPLICANT: Tim Cruz, Architect   STAFF: Jay Paul 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Conditional Approval 

 

Jay Paul, Senior Planner, made a correction to the agenda, indicating that Tim 

Cruz is the Project Manager, not the Architect. He provided an overview of the 

proposed project utilizing a PowerPoint presentation.  He requested Commissioner 

input on the proposed project, including signage and architectural design (i.e., 

marque, signage, renovation of theatre and new two-story building). Senior 

Planner Paul noted the building would also include roll-down security grills. 

 

Tim Cruz, Plain Joe Studios, provided an overview of the project by utilizing a 

PowerPoint Presentation. He indicated the existing footprint of the site was being 

maintained; however, the corner building would be demolished and replaced with 

a new two-story building.  He reviewed the outside seating, café, and lounge area.  

He presented before and after project design photos of the interior and exterior of 

the building(s), and requested input from the Commission regarding the design of 

the project. 

Commissioner Correll questioned if the typed face of the marque, shown in the 

presentation photos, was the proposed format for the lettering on the signage.  



 

 

Page 3 of 10 
 

 

Senior Planner Paul stated the lettering format, shown in the photos, was just for 

discussion and only provides the initial concept to the design.  The format of the 

typed face of the marque would be changeable copies, displaying various event 

titles for the location. 

 

Commissioner Correll also questioned the type face of the upright feature, further 

stating that an older typeface may help to reflect the era of the structure.  He felt 

the initial design proposal was more engrossing and attractive, and the second 

proposal seemed rather stark.  However, he felt that neither of the two proposals 

adequately feature the historic/original building. He stated the project would be 

quite a significant feature for downtown and additional time to review the proposal 

would have been beneficial. 

 

Commissioner Purvis stated she felt as though the project design represented a 

false sense of history.  She referred back to the slide 8 of the power point 

presentation and requested clarification on the proposed demolition of the corner 

building, questioning if the building was on a local registry/survey. She questioned 

if there were any original architectural features present on the corner building that 

could be preserved, and inquired as to why the proposal wasn’t presented to 

reconstruct the original structural design of the building.  

 

Senior Planner Paul confirmed that the corner building was being proposed for 

demolition, further stating that the building was on a local registry/survey.  A 

historical analysis had been conducted, approximately 10 years ago for the theatre 

building, which determined that there was a lack of original features, due to the 

amount of changes/modification, and did not to meet the criteria to be determined 

a significant historic resource. 

 

Commissioner Hanwit stated the emphasis of the project should be on the original 

theatre marque and the second marque should be much smaller. She also noted 

she was not in favor of demolishing the corner site. She felt the arched windows 

presented in the renderings did not match the art deco design of the buildings 

 

Commissioner Correll stated he appreciated the proposal and the intended uses; 

however, he felt that parking was a concern for the location.  He questioned if it 

was within the Commissions purview to discuss use of the location. 



 

 

Page 4 of 10 
 

Principal Planner Finestone stated the project being presented to the Commission 

is relative to design issues, not the issue of land use. 

 

Vice-chair Spann recalled a previous proposal for the site, and the determination 

that the site not authentic enough to restore.  He was in favor of restoring the 

theatre building to allow for utilization of the site.  He questioned the finish on the 

windows.  He also suggested that the blue line below the Marque should be 

extended past the marque.  He stated there should be some leeway for the 

signage, considering the original marque will be retained; however, he felt the 

marque on the corner should be considerably smaller and could potentially mimic 

the shape of the original marque. 

 

Tim Cruz, Plain Joe Studios, stated the finish on the windows would be copper.  

The horizontal lines painted on the building to extend past the Marque is easily 

and is not an issues.  He requested additional input on the arch vs. squared design 

of the windows, and/or any significant changes that might affect the design 

process.  

 

Chair Rea stated she was not in favor of the initial design proposal.  She 

commented on the architectural design of the corner building and would like to see 

the corner accentuated.  She appreciated the detail on the proposal which captures 

the upside down “L” and some of the vertical elements of the side of the building. 

She would like to see the tiles/blocks along with the corner of the building 

accentuated.  She also noted she would like to see the old mural replicated on the 

blank wall above the marque.  She was in favor of the proposed development and 

use of the property.  Referring to Slide 12: She agreed that the blue strip should 

be placed on the opposing side of the marque. She appreciated the design of the 

vertical windows and the incorporation of replicated features from the exterior 

design present at City Hall.  She also noted that she would like to see the size of 

the additional marque reduced.  She called the attention to the café being exposed 

to the elements, and would like to see some options for both opening and closing 

off the café. 

Commissioner Breitenfeld stated she would like to focus on consistency with the 

original design.  She questioned the entrance located on the corner. She felt as 

though the design of the corner building overwhelmed the original building. 

 



 

 

Page 5 of 10 
 

Tim Cruz, Plain Joe Studios, questioned if the design should show and emphasize 

the existing theater, which was purchased first and the corner building was 

purchased for incorporated design and visibility. He also indicated the proposed 

design was inspired to serve the pedestrian level. He stated the theatre and the 

corner building were being designed to operate as one facility.  He also stated the 

theatre was believed to have the historical significance; thus, the design focused 

primarily on complementing the architectural design of the theatre. 

 

Senior Planner Paul requested any recommendations for the final design of the 

project.  He stated the project timeline needed to move forward in order to conduct 

the environmental review and present the project to the Planning Commission. 

 

Principal Planner Finestone requested that the Commission formulate a motion to 

provide to provide direction to the applicant.  

 

Vice-chair Spann recommended that the design be simplified. 

 

Tim Cruz, Plain Joe Studios, stated the project would need to be reviewed within 

the next two to three weeks.   

 

Commissioner Correll was in favor of the project, but the overall design 

consistency was the main concern. 

 

Principal Planner Finestone stated staff would be able to assist with the general 

overall design; however, broad design changes were of concern and staff would 

want to bring the item back to the Commission for final review.  

 

Commissioner Purvis requested a copy of the previous Historic Report/Survey.  

She also recommended the upper story of the new building should be setback 

and the ornamentation eliminated.  She also recommended the pylon be 

minimized; corner marque removed; and focus more attention on the design 

elements that are part of the historic features of the theatre and simplify the 

design of the corner building.  She further stated she liked the color schemes and 

the details; however, some of the metal work seemed reminiscent of the City Hall 

rather than the theatre. 

 



 

 

Page 6 of 10 
 

Principal Planner Finestone stated that the report/survey would be made available 

to the Commission. 

 

ACTION: 

 

Chair Rea motioned to defer to staff for project design changes and brought back 

to the Commission for review. Seconded by Commission Correll.  Motion passed 

unanimously. 

 

J.2   DESIGN REVIEW – Case No. ADM14-0047 
 
REQUEST:  Proposed Double Garage and Second Story Addition to OEN 
Residence 
ZONING/LOCATION: R-1-6 (Single-Family)/ 1165 Chestnut Street 

APPLICANT: Sammuel Mireles   STAFF: Paul Bingham 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Approval 

Paul Bingham, Assistant Planner II, provided a brief overview and supplemental 

documentation for the property. The HPC is tasked with Design Review of the 

proposed project, but the actual size of the addition may be reduced by further 

valuation calculations by staff later. 

 

Chair Rea questioned the era of the site and surrounding area. Assistant Planner 

II Bingham stated that the original structure likely depicted the craftsman style era. 

Sammuel Mireles, Applicant stated that the existing Mediterranean house was not 

the original style, he wanted to return it to the craftsman style.  

 

Chair Rea stated that a two story design was concerning, especially if the 

neighboring backyards are viewable from the second story. She stated that if the 

neighbors were in agreement with the design, she was in favor of the design.  

 

Vice-chair Spann stated that he liked the plan and that the design was a nice 

addition to the neighborhood, the project makes the house more conformable.   

 

Commissioner Breitenfeld stated that the existing garage was not usable.  She 

questioned the square footage of the house.   

Assistant Planner II Bingham identified the page in the staff report that discussed 

the square footage of the dwelling.  

 



 

 

Page 7 of 10 
 

Chair Rea questioned if the building would have a sprinkler system. 

 

Assistant Planner II Bingham stated that the project presentation was a conceptual 

design.  

 

ACTION:  

 

Vice-Chair Spann moved to approve staff recommendation for the proposed 

Double Garage and Second Story Addition to OEN Residence, Commissioner 

Cowan seconded the motion. Motion passed unanimously.  

 

 
J.3  DESIGN REVIEW – Case No. ADM18-0082 

 

REQUEST:  Proposed Exterior Modifications to Local Register Garage Associated 
with its Conversion into an Accessory Dwelling Unit (SDU) 
ZONING/LOCATION: R-2-12 (Multi-Family)/ 421 East 4th Avenue 

APPLICANT: Nancy Lane    STAFF: Paul Bingham 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Approval 

 

Commissioner Hanwit recused herself due to proximity of her personal residence 

to the project and stepped down from the dais.  

 

Paul Bingham, Assistant Planner II, provided a brief overview and supplemental 

documentation, including proposed window and door changes that made sense to 

staff in light of the SDU’s floor plan, and requested Commission Approval. Danny 

Iverson, Applicant Representative, was available for questions. 

 

Chair Rea stated that she would like to see the existing door replaced and 

suggested that a Dutch door would be charming for the site. 

 

Commissioner Purvis questioned if historic photos were investigated. Assistant 

Planner II Bingham indicated that the City did not have many photos, he identified 

the photos that were available. 

Chair Rea, understanding that the garage would need to be sealed for habitability, 

she requested that the design show a resemblance of carriage doors with hinges.   

 



 

 

Page 8 of 10 
 

Commissioner Purvis was in favor of the faux carriage door to seal the garage. 

She questioned the second double hung window.  She suggested the possibility 

of utilizing a skylight.  She was in favor of the project, and agreed with staff 

regarding the doors. 

 

Danny Iverson, Applicant Representative, addressed the design questions. 

 

Vice-chair Spann stated that staff’s recommendation for windows was good, he 

was in favor of the faux carriage door, and was in favor of wood windows. 

 

Chair Rea questioned landscape plans.  

 

Danny Iverson, Applicant Representative, reviewed the site and stated that there 

was an existing driveway.  

 

Adam Finestone, Principal Planner stated that the plans would still need to be 

reviewed by the Building Department to ensure compliance with the building code 

requirements. 

 

ACTION: 

 

Vice-chair Spann moved to approve staff recommendation with the front door 

being replaced with a period appropriate door, and the placement of a faux door, 

painted and complete with trim and hinges, for the sealing of the garage. Seconded 

by Commissioner Correll. Motion carried. Ayes: Rea, Spann, Breitenfeld, Correll, 

Cowan, and Purvis. Noes: None. Abstained: None. Recused: Hanwit. (6-0-0-1) 

 

J.4 DISCUSSION OF AD HOC WORK GROUPS AND MILLS ACT VISITS 

 

REPORT BY:  Adam Finestone 

Adam Finestone, Principal Planner, addressed the concerns of the Historic 

Preservation Commission to continue conducting Mills Act Visits. He stated that 

after research and review, it had been determined that site visits by the AD HOC 

Group/Standing Committee would be subject to the Brown Act and would not be 

suitable for the site inspections.  He reviewed staff resources, indicating that the 

best alternative would be to conduct historical reviews of permit records to 



 

 

Page 9 of 10 
 

determine upgrade requirements.  He further stated that staff would continue to 

review staff resources for the Mills Act Visits. 

 

Commissioner Hanwit stated that the only concerns were that homeowners that 

are approved for the Mills Act are not required to establish a priority list.  

 

Chair Rea stated that it was unfortunate that the Mills Act Visits would be halted 

further compromising accountability. She suggested volunteer programs. She 

questioned the possibility of changing the requirements for the Mills Act. She 

suggested the requirement for the homeowner to provide pictures showing 

progress. 

 

Commissioner Breitenfeld stated that if the requirement is not in the contract, then 

homeowners will not be required to submit photos. 

 

Principal Planner Finestone stated that there were certainly problems with the 

existing process.  

 

Assistant Planner II Bingham stated that he was provided with information from the 

2018 Historic Preservation Conference that other jurisdictions were requiring up to 

$6500.00 for a Mills Act application to cover administrative fees. We may want to 

consider a fee for the Mills Act Visits.   

 

Principal Planner Finestone stated that the fee schedule could potentially be 

looked at for further background of fee recovery. The item will be up for further 

discussion.  

 

J.5 REPORT ON MARCH 23, 2018 OFFICE OF HISTORIC PRESERVATION 

CONFERENCE 

 

REQUEST: Staff 

STAFF SUMMARY: Paul Bingham 

 

ACTION: 

 

Item Tabled for the next regularly scheduled meeting. 

 



 

 

Page 10 of 10 
 

 J.6 REPORT ON MAY HISTORIC PRESERVATION MONTH ACTIVITES 

  

REQUEST: Staff 

 

Assistant Planner II Bingham stated that Chair Rea presented a PowerPoint 

Presentation to the City Council on May 9, 2018, honoring Escondido’s Agricultural 

Heritage. Three families and one group were honored in the presentation. The 

families/group: Ben Hillebrecht’s Family, Charles Henry’s Family, Edward 

Grangetto’s Family, and the Bandy Blacksmith Guild.  

 

Chair Rea stated that the Annual Old Escondido Mother’s Day Tour was again a 

great success and sold 500 tickets. 

 

 
K. ORAL COMMUNICATION: - None 
 
L. COMMISSIONER COMMENTS: - None 
 
 
ADJOURNMENT: 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 5:14 PM  
 
 
 
 
______________________________                           ___      _______________  
Adam Finestone, Principal Planner                            Eva Heter, Assistant City Clerk
  






























































	HPC 07-19-18 Agenda.pdf
	HPC Minutes 05.17.18.pdf
	07.18.19 PHG 18-0013 Ritz Theatre.pdf

